
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

North Planning 
Committee 

  

To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman) 

Councillor John Morgan (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Manjit Khatra (Labour Lead) 

Councillor Jem Duducu 

Councillor Duncan Flynn 

Councillor Raymond Graham 

Councillor Henry Higgins 

Councillor John Morse 

Councillor John Oswell 

 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2016 
 

 

Time: 7.30 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE 
UB8 1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  

Published: Tuesday, 5 July 2016 

 Contact: Alex Quayle 
Tel: 01895 250692 
Email: democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at: 
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=116&Year=0 

Public Document Pack



Useful information for  

residents and visitors 
 

Watching & recording this meeting 
 
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting 
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived 
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also 
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report 
on the public part of the meeting. Any individual or 
organisation may record or film proceedings as long 
as it does not disrupt proceedings.  
 
It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should 
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist. 
 
When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices. 

 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with 
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee Room.  
 

Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use.  
 

Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations. 

 

 



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 

 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security 
Officer.  

 

Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 

telephones before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more people who live, work or study in the 
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in 
support of or against an application.  Petitions 
must be submitted in writing to the Council in 
advance of the meeting.  Where there is a 
petition opposing a planning application there is 
also the right for the applicant or their agent to 
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.   

Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  

Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 

 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  

Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   

The procedure will be as follows:-  

1. The Chairman will announce the report;  

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 
followed by any Ward Councillors; 

 

4. The Committee may ask questions of the 

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  

Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  

When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   

If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  

 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 

Chairman's Announcements 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  

3 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent  

4 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered 
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

 

 

PART I - Members, Public and Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this.  The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the 
address of the premises or land concerned. 
 

 

Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & 
Recommendation 

Page 

5 52 Bushey Road, 
Ickenham 
 
71297/APP/2016/529 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

One two storey 4-bedroom 
detached dwelling and one single 
storey 3-bedroom detached 
bungalow with associated off-
street parking spaces, bin/cycle 
storage and amenity space and 
installation of vehicular crossover 
to front (involving demolition of 
garage to side/rear) (Revised and 
Resubmission) 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

1 - 26 
 

87 - 99 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & 
Recommendation 

Page 

6 Harefield Hospital, Hill 
End Road, Harefield 
 
9011/APP/2016/1862 
 
 

Harefield 
 

Infill extension on the second 
floor balcony in order to create a 
16 bed ward and 4 bed High 
Dependency Unit including 
installation of roof mounted plant 
(works involve demolition of part 
of the existing concrete canopy) 
 
Recommendation: Approval + 
Sec 106 
 

27 - 48 
 

100 -110 

7 Douay Martyrs 
School, Cardinal 
Hume Campus, 86 
Long Lane, Ickenham 
 
6683/APP/2016/1226 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

Replacement of existing school 
boundary fence with new 1.8m 
high metal fencing and gates and 
creation of new tarmacadam 
pathway to the main reception. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

49 - 60 
 

111 - 114 

 

Monitoring Report 

8 S106 Quarterly monitoring report                                                                   61 - 86 

 This report provides financial information on s106 and s278 agreements in the 
North Planning Committee area up to 31 March 2016 where the council has 
received and holds funds.  

 

PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee                       87 -114 



This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

52 BUSHEY ROAD ICKENHAM

One two storey 4-bedroom detached dwelling and one single storey 3-bedroom
detached bungalow with associated off-street parking spaces, bin/cycle
storage and amenity space and installation of vehicular crossover to front
(involving demolition of garage to side/rear) (Revised and Resubmission)

10/02/2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 71297/APP/2016/529

Drawing Nos: 151224/01
151224/02
151224/07
151224/08
Design and Access Statemen
151224/03 Rev B
151224/04 Rev A
151224/05 Rev A
151224/06 Rev A
151224/07 Rev A
151224/08 Rev A (Streetscene

Date Plans Received: 10/02/2016Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application proposal seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing single
storey detached bungalow on the site and erection of a two storey 4-bedroom detached
dwelling and a single storey 3-bedroom detached bungalow with associated off-street
parking spaces, waste bin/cycle storage and amenity space, and installation of vehicular
crossover to front (involving demolition of garage to side/rear).

The application has been referred to the Planning Committee because of the receipt of a
petition and representations from local residents.

Notwithstanding the location of the application site in a prominent corner plot junction, it is
considered that the proposed development by reason of its acceptable design, scale, form,
proportions and footprint, would not constitute over-development of the site, and it would
not constitute an over-dominant, obtrusive and/or overbearing impact on the character,
appearance and visual amenities of the Bushey Road and Chiltern Close streetscenes.

The proposed new dwellings on the site would not cause any detrimental impact on the
residential amenities currently enjoyed at adjacent properties in the immediate locality, in
respect of natural light, outlook, overshadowing and visual intrusion. There are no privacy
issues arising and adequate separation distances are proposed to avoid direct overlooking
of adjacent properties to the sides and rear.

Satisfactory living environments would be provided for potential future occupants of the
proposed dwellings in the form of internal floorspaces that exceed minimum required space
standards, as well as adequate usable rear garden amenity spaces.

10/02/2016Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposed off-street parking provision with new associated vehicle crossover in a
central position, is acceptable and would not be likely to result in a demand for additional
on-street parking for occupants of the proposed dwellings. The new crossover and off-
street parking would not have any adverse implications for general highway and pedestrian
safety in the locality given the provision of appropriate visibility splays, and adequate soft-
landscaping would be provided in the front gardens to ensure the preservation of the
appearance of the streetscenes.

For these reasons, the application is recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

COM7

NONSC

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

Materials (Submission)

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 151224/07 and 151224/08
(Received on 10/02/2016) and 151224/03 Rev B, 151224/04 Rev A, 151224/05 Rev A,
151224/06 Rev A, 151224/07 Rev A and 151224/08 Rev A (Revised and received on
21/04/2016), and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and The London Plan (2015).

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Prior to commencement, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
clearly demonstrate how it:

Manages Water: The scheme shall demonstrate ways of controlling the surface water on

1

2

3

4

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 2



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

site by providing information on:

a) Suds features:
i. incorporating sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in
Policy 5.15 of the London Plan (2015). Where the proposal does not utilise the most
sustainable solution, justification must be provided,
ii. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to control
surface water and size of features to control that volume to Greenfield run off rates at a
variety of return periods including 1 in 1 year, 1in 30, 1 in 100, and 1 in 100 plus Climate
change,
iii. overland flooding should be mapped, both designed and exceedance routes above the
100, plus climate change, including flow paths depths and velocities identified as well as
any hazards (safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

b) Receptors:
i. Capacity demonstrated for Thames Water foul and surface water network, and provide
confirmation of any upgrade work required having been implemented and receiving
watercourse as appropriate.
ii. Where infiltration techniques (soakaway) are proposed a site investigation must be
provided to establish the level of groundwater on the site, and to demonstrate the suitability
of infiltration techniques proposed on the site (This should be undertaken at the appropriate
time of year as groundwater levels fluctuate).
iii. identify vulnerable receptors, i.e WFD status and prevent pollution of the receiving
groundwater and/or surface waters through appropriate methods;

c) Minimise water use. The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise
the use of potable water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
i. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.
ii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
iii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

d) Long Term Management and Maintenance of the drainage system:
i. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues. Where there is overland flooding
proposed, the plan should include the appropriate actions to ensure the safety of the users
of the site should that be required.
ii. Where the maintenance will not be the responsibility of an individual householder, the
details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and
maintenance plan must be provided.

e) During Construction:
i. How temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement of construction.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

Page 3



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES9

RES14

HO5

Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

No additional windows or doors

To ensure that surface water run-off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding in accordance with Policy EM6 (Flood Risk Management) of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policy 5.12
(Flood Risk Management) of The London Plan (2015), the National Planning Policy
Framework (March 2012) and the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be
handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 (Sustainable
Drainage) of The London Plan (2015) and conserve water supplies in accordance with
Policy 5.15 (Water use and supplies) of The London Plan (2015).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1.   Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a  Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b  Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c  Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments
2.b Hard Surfacing Materials

3. Schedule for Implementation

4. Other
4.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
4.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with Policies BE13 and BE38 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with Policies BE13, BE21, BE22, BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted

5

6

7

Page 4



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HO6

COM6

HO6

Obscure Glazing

Levels

Obscure Glazing

Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed in the
walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The windows in the first floor side elevation of the two storey detached dwelling facing No.
54 Bushey Road and the single storey detached dwelling hereby approved, as well as the
dormer windows in the northern side roofslope of the single storey detached dwelling
hereby approved, shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below
a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The bungalow property hereby approved shall not exceed a maximum height of 5.8 metres

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The first floor window in the east facing, rear elevation of the bungalow hereby approved
shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8
metres taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

8

9

10

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including

Page 5



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I59 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies3

the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2015).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control

AM7
AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H3
H4
H5
OE7

OE8

HDAS-EXT

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 5.16
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.4
NPPF

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Loss and replacement of residential accommodation
Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008
Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
(2015) Increasing housing supply
(2015) Optimising housing potential
(2015) Quality and design of housing developments
(2015) Housing Choice
(2015) Sustainable design and construction
(2015) Flood risk management
(2015) Sustainable drainage
(2015) Water use and supplies
(2015) Waste self-sufficiency
(2015) An inclusive environment
(2015) Local character
National Planning Policy Framework

Page 6



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I47

I2

I5

I15

Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

Encroachment

Party Walls

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

4

5

6

7

decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

Page 7



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site constitutes a corner plot on the eastern side of Bushey Road and on the
northern corner of the junction of Bushey Road and Chiltern Close, a small residential cul-
de-sac.

The site currently comprises a single storey detached bungalow in a central position, a car-
port to the southern side and garages/outbuilding farther to the southern side and rear. The
properties in that immediate section of Bushey Road consist of a mix of detached
bungalows, and two storey semi-detached and detached dwellings. The immediate adjacent
property to the north of the application site is the two storey semi-detached dwelling at No.
54 Bushey Road, whilst the immediate adjacent property to the south (on the southern
corner of the junction) is the single storey detached bungalow at No. 36 Bushey Road. The
properties to the rear of the site on Chiltern Close, consist of both detached bungalows and
semi-detached houses. Directly opposite the application site on the western side is the
grounds of the Breakspear School.

The site is situated within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Revised plans have been submitted with this application, which seeks permission for the
demolition of the existing bungalow on the site and erection of a two storey 4-bedroom
detached dwelling and a single storey 3-bedroom detached bungalow with associated off-
street parking spaces, waste bin/cycle storage and amenity space, and installation of

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Advice Note: Front gardens

Where the area of ground covered by the hard surface, or the area of hard surface
replaced, would exceed 5 square metres, either the hard surface shall be made of porous
materials, or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a
permeable or porous area or surface within the curtilage of the dwelling house.

Guidance on how alter a front garden appropriately can be found on the RHS website:
https://www.rhs.org.uk/science/pdf/climate-and-sustainability/urban-greening/gardening-
matters-front-gardens-urban-greening

You should ensure that water from your front drive does not flow on to the Highway
otherwise enforcement action could be undertaken to ensure this is rectified.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 8



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

71297/APP/2015/3835 - Two, two storey, 4-bedroom semi-detached dwellings with
associated parking and amenity space and installation of vehicular crossover to front
(involving demolition of the existing bungalow)
Decision: Refused on 21/12/2015.

vehicular crossover to front (involving demolition of garage to side/rear).

The proposed dwellings would front onto Bushey Road and they would have front elevations
that maintain the established front building line on that section of the eastern side of the
highway. The proposed two storey detached dwelling would be 7.5m high with a main
pyramidal hipped roof, a front projection with lower pitch roof and front porch with pitch roof
canopy. The detached dwelling would be 8m wide and 11m deep. The dwelling would
maintain a gap to the northern boundary with the adjacent dwelling at No.54 by 1m to the
front and 1.4m to the rear. The proposed single storey detached bungalow would be 8m
wide, 11m deep and 5.8m high. The bungalow would have a gable pitch roof and feature
three dormers with barn-hipped roofs and obscure-glazed windows in the northern side
roofslope facing the proposed two-storey detached dwelling. The dormers would each be
2.7m wide, 1.85m high and 2.7m deep. The bungalow would maintain a gap of 1.45m to the
southern boundary with the adjoining Chiltern Close highway. 

Two off-street parking spaces would be provided for each dwelling in the front gardens, and
new 0.6m high brick walls and a new 4.8m wide centrally positioned vehicular crossover
would be provided at the back of the adjoining footpath. An existing crossover on the front
boundary would be reinstated as part of the adjoining footpath. Storage for cycle spaces
(two per dwelling) and waste bins (two per dwelling) would be provided inside the sub-
divided existing outbuilding at the rearmost part of the rear garden. Two doors in the existing
2m close-boarded fence along the rear boundary would allow access to and from Chiltern
Close to the rear. Two rear gardens of approximately 11m depth are proposed and they
would comprise usable amenity areas of approximately 108.4 sq.m for the proposed two
storey dwelling and approximately 76 sq.m for the proposed bungalow.

This application follows on from the refusal of permission for a previous application
(reference 71297/APP/2015/3835), which was refused permission on 21/12/2015 for two,
two storey, 4-bedroom semi-detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space
and installation of vehicular crossover to front (involving demolition of the existing
bungalow).

71297/APP/2015/3835

71297/PRC/2016/7

52 Bushey Road Ickenham

52 Bushey Road Ickenham

2 x two storey, 4-bed, semi detached dwellings with associated parking and amenity space and
installation of vehicular crossover to front involving demolition of existing bungalow

Demolition of existing detached dwelling and erection of 2 new detached dwellings

21-12-2015

12-04-2016

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

OBJ

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 9



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Reasons for refusal:

i) The proposal by reason of its siting in this open prominent position would result in the loss
of an important gap characteristic to the area, resulting in a cramped appearance. The
proposal would therefore represent an overdevelopment of the site to the detriment of the
character and the visual amenities of the area and to this existing open area of the street
scene. Therefore the proposal is contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London
Plan (2011) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.

ii) The proposal would result in the provision of a crossover of excessive width which allied
to its position and the fact that the parking layout would result in vehicles reversing onto the
street very close to the junction with Chiltern Close would result in conditions that are
detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan Policies (November
2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Following on from the refusal of permission for the above application, the applicant sought
formal pre-application advice for a scheme similar to this application proposal (reference
71297/PRC/2016/7) on 12/01/2016. The applicant was advised that the proposal, based on
the submitted plans and supporting documents could not be supported at application stage,
as it would result in an unacceptable impact upon the character and appearance of the
street scene. The applicant was advised to change the crown roof design of the proposed
two storey dwelling and the flat roof design of the dormers in the proposed bungalow. The
applicant was also advised to reduce the bulk of the dormers and set in the bungalow further
away from the southern side boundary with the Chiltern Close highway. The proposed
parking layout and vehicular crossover would have to be amended to incorporate one
shared crossover, at least one parking bay to be parallel with Bushy Road, re-instating of
the existing vehicular crossover as part of the adjoining footpath, provision of pedestrian
visibility splays with no obstruction over 0.6m high at the back of the footpath and to each
side of the proposed vehicular access.

The plans submitted with this application proposal broadly reflect the pre-application advice
given.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.BE1

PT1.EM6

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Flood Risk Management

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

Page 10



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H3

H4

H5

OE7

OE8

HDAS-EXT

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.15

LPP 5.16

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

NPPF

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2015) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2015) Quality and design of housing developments

(2015) Housing Choice

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Waste self-sufficiency

(2015) An inclusive environment

(2015) Local character

National Planning Policy Framework

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Page 11



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

13 neighbouring properties and the Ickenham Residents Area were consulted about the application by
letter dated 12/02/2016 and a site notice was also displayed in the area on 22/02/2016.

A petition containing 37 signatures and objecting to the application has been received from local
residents. 1 letter of support and 7 letters of objection have also been received from local residents. 1
letter of objection has also been received from the Ickenham Residents Association. The grounds of
the objections are summarised below:

- Over-development
- Loss of existing bungalow and out of keeping with character of area.
- Over-dominance as a result of excessive height
- New vehicular crossover and parking spaces will remove available on-street spaces and result in
additional traffic and parking problems in area
- Close proximity of new crossover to junction and to the adjacent School will constitute traffic hazard
- Visual impact on streetscene as a result of loss of street greenery
- Use of rear access for parking onto Chiltern Close 
- Loss of sunlight/daylight and outlook
- Overlooking and loss of privacy

CASE OFFICER'S COMMENTS: 
With regards to the objection about use of a rear access for parking on Chiltern Close to the rear, it
should be noted that a rear vehicular access is not proposed. Access in the form of doors in the
existing 2m high rear boundary fence would only be used as access to the cycle and waste bin
storage at the rearmost parts of the rear gardens.

The grounds of the letter of support received are:

- Proposed vehicular crossover and parking will improve parking on that corner of Chiltern Close
- Proposal will visually improve the site, which is currently unsightly with various wooden outbuildings
in the garden
- Existing traffic and parking problems are associated with the adjacent School. 

Ickenham Residents Association:

This second proposal is still an over-development of the site to the detriment of the character and the
visual amenities of the area and has failed to overcome the Council's first reason for refusal on
21.12.15, i.e. it would not retain sufficient gaps or spacing expected, which would result in a cramped
form of development.

Local residents have contacted the Association with their concerns about this overdevelopment and
point out that the closeness to Breakspear Road School is not even mentioned, which causes parking
problems at present and would do so even more with the above proposal. We understand that the
original bungalow houses 3 people at the moment, whereas the proposed developments could
possibly house up to 11 peoples with relating traffic movements.

Page 12



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS OFFICER - Initial Comments:

- The site has very poor public transport accessibility (PTAL=1a). Provision for two car parking
spaces per dwelling complies with LBH maximum parking standards.

- The proposed layout of the car parking and vehicular crossovers should be amended to provide a
single shared crossover and with at least one parking bay to be parallel with Bushy Road. Existing
crossover should be reinstated as footway. Unobstructed pedestrian access to the dwellings should
be maintained.

- Pedestrian visibility splays measuring 1.5m x 1.5m with no obstruction over 0.6m high, should be
provided at the back of footway and to each side of the vehicular access.

- It is recommended that a low wall (600mm with pedestrian gates) be provided at the back of
footpath, to each side of the crossover - so as to prevent vehicles manoeuvring over / across the
adjacent footpath.

Subject to the above, there are no highway objections.

CASE OFFICER COMMENTS: The applicant has submitted a revised proposed car parking layout
plan that satisfactorily addresses the requirements of the Highways Officers. 

DRAINAGE OFFICER:

The minor development scheme sits on a plot that is shown to be "At risk of surface water flooding" on
the Environment Agency (EA) Mapping. A suitable condition should be added to this decision,
requiring the submission and approval of a scheme for the provision of sustainable water
management prior to the commencement of any works.

TREES OFFICER:

The site is occupied by a bungalow on the east side of Bushey Road, at the junction with Chiltern
Close, a small residential cul de sac. The bungalow is sited centrally within an exceptionally wide plot,
with a driveway, car port and garage along the southern boundary and garden space to the front, rear
and north side of the building. While the garden is well-established, there are no specimen trees or
features of merit, which would constrain development.

There are no Tree Preservation Orders and no Conservation Area designations affecting trees within
the site.

Landscape Considerations:

- No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal.

There is also concern about the proposed second exit at the rear of the property into Chiltern Close
for bins and a cycle shed, which would lead to more traffic and community vehicle movements in this
approach road.

We strongly object to this application and are completely in the hands of your Planning Team with
their greater expertise and facilities, and trust they will take our points into consideration to arrive at
the correct decision.

Page 13



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

In terms of the principle of the proposed development, there is no material objection to the
replacement of an already established residential use on the site, and which is within an
established residential area. 

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) specifies that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development, which is described for decision taking as
"approving development proposals which accord with the development plan." As a core
planning principle the effective use of land is encouraged by reusing land that has been
previously developed (Brownfield land). 

Policy 3.5 of The London Plan (2015), specifies that 'Housing developments should be of
the highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context and to the wider
environment, taking account of strategic policies in this Plan to protect and enhance
London's residential environment and attractiveness as a place to live'. 

The application site currently comprises of a single storey detached bungalow, with
garages/outbuildings to the side and rear, which constitute 'previously developed land'.
There is a presumption in favour of residential development on previously developed
(Brownfield) land subject to other material planning considerations.

Subject to normal development control criteria and having regard to The London Plan (2015)

- The proposal includes the provision of two off-street parking space, to the front of each house.
- Both houses will also benefit from having front gardens (approximately 50% front garden coverage)
- Bin and bike stores have been discretely sited in the rear gardens near the back boundary which
has gated access to Chiltern Close.
- If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure
that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding
natural and built environment.

RECOMMENDATION: No objection, subject to the above observations and imposition of a condition
in respect of the submission and approval of a soft/hard landscaping scheme (Condition code RES9)

WASTE DEVELOPMENT OFFICER:

Space is allocated for waste storage which is good practice. Hillingdon is not a wheeled bin borough.
Bins or other containment would have to be provided by the developer.

The current waste and recycling collection systems are: -
· Weekly residual (refuse) waste - using sacks / bins purchased by the occupier
· Weekly dry recycling collection - using specially marked sacks provided by the Council.
· Weekly green garden waste collection - three specially marked reusable bags (each approximately
80 litre capacity) provided by the Council free of charge. Occupiers of larger properties can purchase
three additional reusable bags.
· Weekly collection of textiles provided - using specially marked purple tinted sacks
· Weekly collection of food waste for residents wishing to participate. Those in the scheme are
provided with a 7 litre internal 'caddy' and a 23 litre external storage container.

The waste and recycling should be presented near the curtilage of the property on Bushey Road
when it is the allocated collection day.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 14



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

and the Council's policies and guidelines, it is considered that the proposal would provide an
increase in smaller housing stock within the Borough and is acceptable in principle, as it
would provide additional housing within an area of low public transport accessibility. 

The proposal therefore accords with Policy H4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) in that respect, and there are, in principle, no
objections to the development of the site.

Policy 3.4 of The London Plan (2015) seeks to ensure that new development 'take into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and that public
transport capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location
within the relevant density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals that
compromise this policy should be resisted'.

Paragraph 4.1 of the Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
specifies that in new developments, numerical densities are considered to be more
appropriate to larger sites and will not be used in the assessment of schemes of less than 10
units, such as this proposal. However, density is only one indicator for the acceptance of the
scheme, and other considerations such as impact to the character of the area, internal floor
areas and external amenity space would carry far more weight. The key consideration is
therefore whether the development sits comfortably within its environment rather than a
consideration of the density of the proposal.

Not applicable, as the application site does not comprise any statutorily or locally listed
buildings, and is not situated within any Archaeological Priority Zone, Conservation Area or
Area of Special Local Character.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application. The site is not situated within the Green Belt.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. 

Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that new development complements and improves the
character and amenity of the area. Policy BE5 of the Local Plan (Part Two) requires new
developments within Areas of Special Local Character (ASLC) to harmonise with the
materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in the area. 

Policy BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
specifies a requirement for all new buildings of two or more storeys to be set back a
minimum of one metre from the side boundary for its full height. 

Paragraph 4.27 of the Residential Layouts SPD specifies that careful consideration should
be given to building lines, and that these should relate well to the existing street pattern.
Paragraph 5.6 of the HDAS SPD gives specifies that corners and junctions typically provide
a more complex set of constraints than simple lengths of streets, and will often require a

Page 15



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

more sophisticated approach. Corner sites are often highly visible and give an opportunity to
create a strong landmark building up the quality of the urban character for the area as a
whole.

The objections to the proposed development from local residents in respect of over-
development, over-dominance (as a result of height), out of keeping with the character of the
area and visual impact on streetscene greenery are noted.

It is noted that the application site is visually prominent on both the Bushey Road and
Chiltern Close streetscenes, given that it is significantly wider and more spacious in area
than several adjacent sites in the immediate locality. The central positioning of the existing
bungalow dwelling further emphasises the considerable sense of open spaciousness
particularly to the southern side boundary with the Chiltern Close highway. A key factor
therefore in the assessment of this proposal is the level of reduction, in particular by the
proposed bungalow dwelling, on this spaciousness of the site. 

The proposed two storey dwelling would be set in from the northern side boundary by 1m at
the nearest point and it would only be 0.5m higher than the closest adjacent dwelling to the
north at No.54. Given that there would be a gap of 4.2m between the flank walls of the
proposed dwelling and the dwelling at No.54, it is considered that this gap would be
adequate to offset any visual and/or dominating impact on the streetscene arising from the
0.5m height differential between the proposed two storey dwelling and the dwelling at No.54.
The proposed two storey dwelling would be narrower than the adjacent dwelling at No.54,
and its pyramidal hipped roof form is such that it would not feature any unacceptable crown
section, and it would be characteristic of the general hipped roofscape in the immediate
locality. As such, the design of the proposed two storey dwelling is considered acceptable
and that it would not result in any detrimental impact on the Bushey Road streetscene.

There would be an acceptable gap of 2m between the proposed two storey dwelling and the
proposed bungalow dwelling, with a 1m set-in of the dwellings from their respective southern
and northern side boundaries. The siting of the proposed two storey dwelling to the north
and proposed bungalow dwelling to the south is considered an acceptable setting, as this
positioning would reflect the existing transition of the higher adjacent two storey dwellings to
the north (with the closest being No.54) to the lower single storey bungalow dwellings on the
application site and the adjacent dwelling to the south (across the intervening Chiltern Close
highway) at No.36. 

There is an existing single storey side extension on the adjacent dwelling to the south
(across the intervening Chiltern Close highway) at No.36. This encloses the space between
the original part of the building the access road to the properties to the rear in Chiltern
Close. Any development therefore at number 52 that extends towards Chiltern Close would
further reduce the remaining space and increase this sense of enclosure.

The previous application (reference 71297/APP/2015/3835) was refused (in part) due to the
siting of the proposed dwellings resulting in the loss of an important gap characteristic to the
area, resulting in a cramped appearance. The set back from the side elevation of the house
proposed under the previous application was 1.45 metres and the proposed bungalow would
be set back from the southern side boundary by the same distance of 1.45 metres. 

Previously the refused scheme propsoed semi detached properties with a half hipped roof
design very similar to that already evident at numbers 54 and 56, the half hip meaning that

Page 16



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

the eaves level along the southern boundary was 4.5 metres. In contrast, the bungalow now
proposed has a pitched roof that slopes away from Chiltern Close and the eaves level
proposed is much lower at 2.75 metres. 

The height of the houses proposed under the previous scheme was 6.9 metres to the ridge
and the half hipp design meant the the full height of the roof was set away from the edge of
the site by 4.3 metres. The pitched roof of the proposed bungalow is shown as 5.8 metres
high. The overall impact of the roof further reduced as it is hipped away from Chiltern Close.
The apex of the ridgeline is set 5.5 metres away from the edge of the site. The height of the
overall building can be conditioned to ensure it remains as shown on the plans.

It is considered that the gable pitch roof design of the proposed bungalow dwelling is
acceptable, and the proposed dormers to the northern side roofslope would not constitute a
precedent on the streetscene, given the existence of front, side and rear dormers in
neighbouring properties in the area. Paragraph 7.7 of the Council's adopted HDAS
Residential Extensions (December 2008) specifies that 'a dormer window or roof extension
must be constructed in the centre of the roof face. Paragraph 7.8 specifies that as a guide,
any roof extension to a detached dwelling house should be set at least 1m below the ridge
level, at least 1m above the eaves level and at least 1m from the sides of the roof. The
scale, bulk and design of the proposed side dormers are such that it is considered they
would constitute proportionate additions to the proposed bungalow dwelling, and be
sufficiently contained within the northern side roofslope. The 'barn-style' hipped roofs of the
side dormers are such that they would visually relate well with the characteristic pitch roof
design of dormers in neighbouring properties, and ensure the breakup of the massing of the
proposed bungalow dwelling. It is therefore considered that the proposed dormers would
compliment and harmonise with the character and appearance of the streetscenes and wider
area.

The scale and design of the proposed rooflights in the proposed bungalow dwelling are
considered acceptable, and it is also helpful to note that both the proposed two storey
dwelling and bungalow dwelling would incorporate fenestration and design features that are
characteristic of the immediate locality.

The bungalow is not positioned any further away from the site boundary than the previous
application which was refused on the basis of its erosion of space. However, this current
scheme is both lower in overall height and lower to the eaves. In addition the orientation of
the roof means that the roof slopes away from Chiltern Close. There would continue to be a
greater visual impact of the proposed development over and above the existing bungalow on
the site. However, this impact is now less than that represented on the previously refused
application. On balance it is considered that these factors in combination are sufficient to
overcome the previous reason for refusal. 

The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the design objectives of Policy BE1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Polices BE13,
BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
the advice contained within the HDAS SPDs: Residential Layouts and Residential
Extensions.

Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) specifies that new buildings should not result in the loss of sunlight or loss

Page 17



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

of residential amenity. Policy BE20 specifies that 'buildings should be laid out so that
adequate daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and between them and the amenities of
existing houses are safeguarded'. Policy BE21 specifies that 'planning permission will not be
granted for new buildings or extensions which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity,
would result in a significant loss of residential amenity.

Paragraph 4.11 of the Residential Layouts HDAS gives advice that the 45 degree line of
sight principle will be applied to new development, to ensure the amenity of adjoining
occupiers and future occupiers are protected. Paragraph 4.9 of the HDAS SPD specifies
that a minimum acceptable distance to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and
overshadowing is 15m. Paragraph 4.12 of the HDAS SPD requires a minimum of 21m
distance between facing habitable room windows to prevent overlooking and loss of privacy.

The objections from the local residents in respect of loss of light, outlook, overlooking and
loss of privacy are noted.

The proposed dwellings would not directly back onto any neighbouring dwellings, and their
rear garden boundaries would back onto a turning head area on Chiltern Close. The
relationship with the adjacent dwelling to the north at No.54 is not unusual, given that it
would be sited in a linear street of dwellings. The proposed two-storey detached dwelling
will be set in 1m and 1.4m from the side boundary with the adjacent dwelling at No.54, and
would project beyond the rear wall of that adjacent dwelling by 2.4m. The submitted plans
demonstrate that the proposed two storey dwelling would not breach any 45 degree line of
sight from the nearest edges of the closest rear facing windows (ground and first floors) at
the dwelling at No.54, therefore ensuring there would be no form of overshadowing or loss
of light and outlook for the occupiers at No.54. 

The distance between the rear of the proposed two storey dwelling and the western side
elevation of the closest neighbouring property to the rear, No. 50A Chiltern Close, is
approximately 13.9m. It should be noted that it is not the same type of building relationship
that applies with the 15m HDAS guideline as the buildings are not parallel to one another.
The side elevation of the dwelling at No.50A would have a north-eastern orientation in
relation to the rear of the proposed dwelling. The western side elevation of the dwelling at
No.50A does not consist of any habitable room windows. The first floor rear windows of the
proposed dwelling would only look directly onto the front drive of No.50a and not directly into
any habitable rooms. Oblique views could be possible from the first floor window in the rear,
eastern facing, window of the bungalow. To address this, it is recommended that an obscure
glazing condition be imposed on any approval granted.

The proposed two storey dwelling would feature first floor windows in its northern and
southern flank walls, which would serve non-habitable rooms. It is however considered
expedient to recommend a condition to ensure that these windows are permanently obscure-
glazed and non-opening from a height of 1.8m below the finished floor level of those rooms

The proposed bungalow dwelling would have no adverse implications for residential
amenities at the closest adjacent dwelling to the south at No.36, given the intervening
Chiltern Close highway. The distance between the front elevation of the dwelling at No. 50A
Chiltern Close to the rear and the rear elevation of the proposed bungalow would be
approximately 21m, which complies with the guidance in paragraph 4.12 of the HDAS SPD.
It has been considered that the 1m separation of the proposed bungalow from its northern
side boundary with the proposed two storey dwelling is acceptable, and the proposed side

Page 18



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

dormers would be obscure-glazed. Even though two of the side dormer windows would
serve habitable rooms, these dormer windows would constitute secondary openings for
these habitable rooms. 

It is considered therefore that the proposed development would be unlikely to result in any
adverse impact on the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of adjacent
properties. Accordingly, in this regard, the proposed development would comply with the
guidance contained in Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the guidance contained in the Residential
Layouts HDAS SPD.

Policy 3.5 of The London Plan (2015) specifies that housing developments should be of the
highest quality internally, externally and in relation to their context and to the wider
environment.

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015 and the
Mayor of London has adopted them as the Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The
London Plan (March 2016). Table 3.3 of the adopted standards specify that for a two storey
4-bedroom 8 people dwelling, the required minimum gross internal area should be 124 sq.m,
whilst it should be a minimum gross internal area of 102 sq.m for a two storey 3-bedroom 6
people dwelling. 

The proposed two storey dwelling would consist of 4 bedrooms, whilst the proposed
detached bungalow dwelling would consist of 3 bedrooms. The total internal area for the
proposed two storey detached dwelling would be approximately 176 sq.m, whilst the total
internal area for the proposed bungalow would also be approximately 176 sq.m. These
provided floor areas would therefore significantly exceed the required minimum floor areas
specified in the space standards, and ensure the proposed dwellings constitute satisfactory
living environments for potential future occupiers.

The submitted plans show that all the proposed habitable rooms would maintain an
adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore complying with the standards in the
Mayor of London's Housing SPG (December 2012) and the Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016).

External Amenity Space

The Residential Layouts and Residential Extensions HDAS SPDs give guidance that for a:
· 3 bedroom house, at least 60 sq.m of private amenity space should be provided, and for a
· 4 or more bedroom house, at least 100 sq.m of private amenity space should be provided

The submitted plans show that the proposed two storey detached dwelling, which would
consist of 4 bedrooms, would have approximately 108.40 sq.m of private rear garden space.
The proposed detached bungalow dwelling, which would consist of 3 bedrooms, would have
approximately 76 sq.gm of private rear garden space. 

Therefore the proposed development complies with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

7.12

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Polices (November 2012) in respect of the provision of
adequate usable amenity space.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by proposed
developments is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows
and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 specifies that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Councils adopted Car Parking Standards, which states that a maximum of 2 spaces
should be allocated per dwelling. 

The objections from local residents in respect of parking and traffic problems and hazard as
a result of the siting of the new vehicular crossover in close proximity to the Breakspear
School is noted.

The submitted plans show that each of the proposed dwellings would have 2 off-street
parking spaces in their front gardens, and these spaces would be arranged in parallel and at
right angles to the highway. The Council's Highways officer has not raised any objection in
this regard, as the arrangement would allow for ease of passage and safe manoeuvrability of
vehicles within the curtilages of the sites. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal would
be unlikely to result in an increase in the demand for additional on-street parking to the
extent that this would be prejudicial to both pedestrian and highway safety in the immediate
vicinity. Storage for two cycles per dwelling is provided in the outbuilding in the rear
gardens, which complies with the Local Plan and The London Plan standards.

It is also instructive to note that the existing vehicular crossover, which is sited very close to
the junction with Chiltern Close, would be blocked off and re-instated as part of the adjoining
footpath. Furthermore, the sole new crossover proposed would be sited further away from
that junction and have a central positioning. The Highways Officer has not raised any
objection to the width of the crossover and associated visibility splays, and the 0.6m high
low-level walls provided along the front boundary would not be obstructive, and help guard
against any overhanging of vehicles onto the adjoining footpath.

Given the above considerations, the proposal would provide adequate and sustainable
transport/parking facilities within the site, and it would not be detrimental to
highway/pedestrian safety in the immediate locality, thereby compliant with Policies AM7 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
the Council's adopted car parking standards.

It has been considered that the proposed development would incorporate a level of design
that would not detract from the preservation of the character and appearance of both the
Bushey Road and Chiltern Close streetscenes.

The proposed development would incorporate an acceptable level of accessibility and it
would feature entrances and openings to the primary front elevation, which look out towards
the Bushey Road highway, and ensuring that natural surveillance of the proposed dwellings
from the highway is maintained.

Policy 3.5(c) of The London Plan requires all new homes to be built to Lifetime Homes

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

standards. However, the new national standards, which comprise of new additional 'optional'
Building Regulations on water and access, substitute this Lifetime Homes requirement. From
October 2015, the new national standards specifies that the requirement should be
interpreted as 90% of homes to meet Building Regulation M4(2) - 'accessible and adaptable
dwellings'.

Policy 3.5(d) of The London Plan requires ten per cent of new housing to be designed to be
wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users. From
October 2015, the new national standards specifies that this should be interpreted as
requiring ten per cent of new housing to meet Building Regulation M4(3) - 'wheelchair user
dwellings'.

The proposal incorporates only two new dwellings and as such, they do not constitute
'Wheelchair User dwellings'. The requirements of Part M4(3)4 is therefore not applicable in
this regard. The submitted plans show the provision of adequate corridor/lobby/door opening
widths and bathroom furniture layouts, which can enable bathrooms to be used as wet
rooms in future, as well as the provision of level threshold access to the primary ground floor
front entrance doors. As such, it is considered that the dwellings have been designed to Part
M4(2)3, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2015, and comply
with the requirements of Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Policies 3.5 and 3.8 of The London Plan (March 2015) in this
regard.

Not applicable with this applicable.

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies seeks the
protection and retention of existing trees and landscape features of merit, and considers
where appropriate the provision of additional landscaping as part of a proposed
development.

Presently, there are no trees of any high amenity value within the site. Even though four off-
street parking spaces with associated hardsurfacing are proposed within the front gardens
of the two proposed dwellings, the Council's Trees Officers have commented that the
proposal has made provision for additional soft landscaping and planting with more than
25% coverage of the front gardens. The Trees Officers has however recommended a
suitable condition to ensure the implementation of a landscaping scheme, which would
ensure an attractive and complementary appearance of the dwellings on the streetscene.

This would help ensure compliance with the requirements of Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The proposal incorporates residential development for single family occupancy, and there
would be adequate scope within the curtilages and rear gardens of the sites for the secure
storage of domestic waste (refuse and recycling).

Not applicable to this application.

The Council's Flood and Water Management Officer has commented that the site is situated
on a plot, which is shown to be "At risk of surface water flooding" on the Environment

Page 21



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Agency (EA) Mapping. The  Officer has therefore recommended the addition of a suitable
condition to this decision, requiring the submission and approval of a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management prior to the commencement of any works.

This would help ensure compliance with the requirements of Policy EM6 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies OE7 and OE8 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies 5.12,
5.13 and 5.15 of The London Plan (March 2015).

There are no adverse noise or air quality issues to address as part of this application
proposal.

The proposed development would not result in an over-intensification of the established
residential use of the application site.

The representations (objection and support) from local residents in form of a petition and
letters have been discussed extensively above in the main section of this report.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

The total CIL liability has been calculated as £33,440.00

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Notwithstanding the location of the application site in a prominent corner plot junction, it is
considered, on balance, that the proposed development by reason of its acceptable design,
scale, form, proportions and footprint, would not constitute over-development of the site, and
it would not constitute an over-dominant, obtrusive and/or overbearing impact on the
character, appearance and visual amenities of the Bushey Road and Chiltern Close
streetscenes.

The proposed new dwellings on the site would not cause any detrimental impact on the
residential amenities currently enjoyed at adjacent properties in the immediate locality, in
respect of natural light, outlook, overshadowing and visual intrusion. There are no privacy
issues arising and adequate separation distances are proposed to avoid direct overlooking
of adjacent properties to the sides and rear.

Satisfactory living environments would be provided for potential future occupants of the
proposed dwellings in the form of internal floorspaces that exceed minimum required space
standards, as well as adequate usable rear garden amenity spaces.

The proposed off-street parking provision with new associated vehicle crossover in a central

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

position, is acceptable and would not be likely to result in a demand for additional on-street
parking for occupants of the proposed dwellings. The new crossover and off-street parking
would not have any adverse implications for general highway and pedestrian safety in the
locality given the provision of appropriate visibility splays, and adequate soft-landscaping
would be provided in the front gardens to ensure the preservation of the appearance of the
streetscenes.

As such, the proposal is considered to comply with Policies AM7, AM14, BE13, BE15, BE19,
BE20, BE21, BE22, BE23, BE24 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012) and the adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts.

11. Reference Documents

The London Plan (2015).
Hillingdon Local Plan Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Mayor of London's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2012)
Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Parking Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)

Victor Unuigbe 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 24



H
O

Y
L

A
K

E
 C

R
E

S
C

E
N

T

7
27

8

5
3

8
6

7
0

4
6

FIELD CLOSE

6
9

3
9

5
0

4
0

2
0

6
7

6
6

1
2

42.1m

2
5

7
2

40.5m

8

2
5

41.8m

LB

2
4
9

6
0

BUSHEY CLOSE

3
6

2
9

8
2

5
0

a

2
4

2
2

TCB

39.3m

2
3
5

9
4

B
U

S
H

E
Y

 R
O

A
D

2
1
9

5
2

6
2

2
3

38.1m

38

MALVERN CLOSE

11

CHILTERN CLOSE

4
2

b

The Breakspear
School

´

July 2016

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

52 Bushey Road

Ickenham

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

71297/APP/2016/529

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HAREFIELD HOSPITAL HILL END ROAD HAREFIELD MIDDLESEX

Infill extension on the second floor balcony in order to create a 16 bed ward
and 4 bed High Dependency Unit including installation of roof mounted plant
(works involve demolition of part of the existing concrete canopy)

16/05/2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 9011/APP/2016/1862

Drawing Nos: Planning Stage Drainage Design Statemen
Heritage Statement
Energy Statement
Design and Access Statemen
10-001 Rev. A
11-001 Rev. A
11-002 Rev. A
15-001 Rev. A
21-002
21-001 Rev. A
30-001
SK-004
31-001 Rev. C

Date Plans Received: 16/05/2016
20/05/2016
22/06/2016

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application is for an infill extension to enclose the last remaining balcony area on the
south elevation of the locally listed main hospital building located on the second (top) floor
of the eastern wing to extend the existing internal floor area in order to allow the provision
of a new 18 bed ward, together with an associated 4 bed High Dependency Unit (HDU) and
nursing, visitor and servicing facilities. The existing administrative and office uses
occupying this floor space would be re-located to vacant hospital buildings elsewhere
within the hospital grounds.

Members may recall a recent planning application (9011/APP/2014/3602 refers) that was
presented to the Major Application Planning Committee on 2/6/15 which included two
elements, a ground floor permanent extension to provide additional Intensive Treatment
Unit (ITU) accommodation, CT and MRI scanners to the rear of the eastern wing of the
main hospital building and also a new 18 bed portable ward building (to be known as 'Holly'
ward) sited above the temporary 'Acorn' ward building at the rear of the western wing of the
main hospital building. That application was approved, following the signing of a S106
Agreement on 18/9/15.

The hospital has advised that the provision of 'Holly' ward is prohibitively expensive,
particularly as this only offered a temporary fix to the need for more bed space at the
hospital and have therefore put forward this alternative permanent solution.

It is considered that the scheme, being an infill extension, would not adversely impact upon

16/05/2016Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the openness of the Green Belt and fully complies with relevant Green Belt policy and the
site specific green belt policy which applies to Harefield Hospital. Furthermore, the scheme
has evolved with the input of the Council's Conservation/ Urban Design Officer who is fully
supportive of the design, subject to its detailing which would be controlled through the
recommended conditions.

There would be no adverse impact upon the amenities of surrounding residential occupiers
through loss of sunlight, dominance or overlooking and there would be no landscaping
issues with this second floor extension.

This scheme, just like the previous 'Holly' ward scheme will increase car parking at the
hospital, albeit this increase is likely to be modest and through the use of a Travel Plan and
the study/ scheme for on-street parking management in the area, which would also be
secured through a Deed of Variation/ S106 Agreement, the scheme provides a
proportionate means by which parking pressures associated with the hospital, particularly
on surrounding streets can be assessed and hopefully alleviated over time. There would
also be a need for the S106 Agreement to ensure that the 'Holly ward element of the
previous permission can not be implemented.

The scheme is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to grant

permanent and temporary planning permission, subject to the following:

A) That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicants under Section

106/Unilateral Undertaking of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as

amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure:

1. The partial non-implementation of planning permission dated 18/9/15, App. No.

9011/APP/2014/3602 refers for the temporary extension above Acorn Ward to

provide a new 18 bed ward with associated access (to be known as Holly ward) and

its link to the main hospital block via a new bridge,

2. A Green Travel Plan for the Hospital Trust, to include a £20,000 bond, and

3. a. Prior to the start of construction, the submission of the scope of a study for

developing a coordinated scheme for the management of on-site and on-street car

parking in the area, to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning

Authority.

3. b. Prior to occupation, funding and implementation of the coordinated on-site car

park management plan and a scheme for management of on-street car parking in

the area, as agreed with the Council.

B) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the

S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being

completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the

proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That if any of the heads of terms set out above have not been agreed and the

S106 legal agreement has not been finalised before the 26th July 2016, or any other

period deemed appropriate that delegated authority be given to the Head of

Page 28



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM3

COM4

COM5

NONSC

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

General compliance with supporting documentation

Building recording

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 15-001 Rev. A, 21-001 Rev. A, 21-
002, 31-001 Rev. C and SK-004 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (March 2016).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Reduction in energy use and renewable technology installation [Energy Assessment]

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the
London Plan (March 2016).

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, internally on the top floor only and
externally on this wing of the building, the building shall be recorded to English Heritage
level 2, the scope and content of this document to be agreed in writing with the LPA and
once agreed, copies to be provided for the Local History Archive at Uxbridge Library and
Historic England.

1

2

3

4

Planning and Enforcement to refuse the application for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to ensure that the necessary Travel Plan and funding for

the study/ scheme for on-street parking management would be

undertaken/prepared/committed in a timely manner and to an appropriate standard.

The scheme therefore conflicts with Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local

Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).'

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the

Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the

completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country

Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Details of works and materials/ finishes

Noise rating level

REASON
To ensure that a record of the listed building is provided, in accordance with Policy BE9 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Details of the following shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of works on that element:-

a) Repairs to the existing balustrade and details of the design and materials of the
replacement balustrade where required,
b) Details of the size and position of roof level services and air handling units,
c) Details of the design, materials, colours and finishes of the new glazed faÃ¿¿§ade,
d) Details of the repairs to existing concrete features, brickwork repairs and reglazing of the
retained elements of the rear facade,
d) Details of the finish, including colour, of the new external canopy and fascia, and
e) Details of the junctions of new partitions and existing/new windows

Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details
and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be
at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property.  The measurements and assessment shall
be made in accordance with British Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial noise
affecting mixed residential and industrial areas".

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5

6

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

NPPF1
NPPF7
NPPF8
NPPF9
NPPF10
NPPF12
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.2
LPP 3.17
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.10
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.16
OL1

OL2
OL4
BE4
BE8
BE13
BE15
BE20
BE21
BE24

OE1

OE8

R16

R17

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development
NPPF - Requiring good design
NPPF - Promoting healthy communities
NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land
NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
(2015) Ensuring equal life chances for all
(2015) Improving health and addressing health inequalities
(2015) Health and social care facilities
(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2015) Sustainable design and construction
(2015) Renewable energy
(2015) Flood risk management
(2015) Sustainable drainage
(2015) Water use and supplies
(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2015) Cycling
(2015) Walking
(2015) Parking
(2015) An inclusive environment
(2015) Designing out crime
(2015) Local character
(2015) Architecture
(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology
(2015) Safety, security and resilience to emergency
(2015) Improving air quality
(2015) Green Belt
Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

Page 31



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work3

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site forms the eastern wing of the main hospital building which forms two,
three storied elliptical wings linking through a central core which were built in the 1930s and

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
PR20
LDF-AH

SPD-PO

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on
congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of
highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Harefield Hospital
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

Page 32



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

have an exposed concrete frame with brick infilling and a loose Art Deco style. These
buildings are locally listed and are sited within the main built-up part of the hospital grounds
which extend to some 19.14 hectares to the north of Harefield Village centre, on the western
side of Rickmansworth and Hill End Roads.

The hospital was originally designed as a sanatorium. Most of the original recessed bays
within the 2 elliptical ward blocks have been in-filled. These existing in-fills have yielded
mixed results in terms of showing an adequate degree of sympathy and respect to the
original design and built form of the hospital block. 

The hospital site is designated by the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP policies
as a major developed site within the Green Belt. The southern part of the site, including the
main 1930s wings and the areas of the two extensions also form part of the Harefield Village
Conservation Area. The site also forms part of the Harefield North Archaeological Priority
Area and the Colne Valley Archaeological Priority Zone. The site is also included within the
Colne Valley Regional Park. A number of the buildings on the site are statutory listed as
Grade II.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to extend the existing internal floor space at second floor level on the
eastern wing of the hospital's main building by enclosing the existing external balcony area
on the south side of the building. This will increase the total amount of second floor space
within this wing by approximately 182sqm to 1,250sqm.

The works involve demolishing the existing second floor south wall and installing new glazed
curtain walling approximately 1.8m further out on the balcony, but inside the retained and
restored curved balcony balustrade, with the roof being extended to meet and slightly
overhang the new curtain wall. The central section of roof would also be raised by up to
800mm to incorporate modern services and there will be new air handling units at roof level,
positioned on the "pods" off the main building. The balcony and roof above the central raised
rotunda that marks the staircase lobby that would be used as the nurse's base would be
retained and restored with the new roof each side of the retained balcony curved around the
corner to meet the original recessed roof. 

The proposals will also rationalise the existing rainwater pipes which currently run down the
front face of the building in grey uPVC and add to the general detritus of the whole. The
proposed design will take rainwater to the other side of the building and down existing
pipework. Soil pipework from the new en-suite facilities and the clinical washbasins in each
bedroom will run down the south facade at set distances in cast iron pipes.

The enlarged space will provide new patient accommodation with a new ward comprising 16
single bed rooms with en-suite facilities, together with a reception area within the main
enlarged wing with an associated 4 bed High Dependency Unit (HDU), nursing, catering,
utility and visitor facilities within the existing 'pods', 4 of which project from the main wing on
the northern elevation and 1 from the side of the building. Patients in this ward with thoracic
and coronary conditions will be provided with round the clock nursing and the unit will be
open at all times throughout the year. The existing administration block which occupies this
floor, including offices, storage space and a board room within one of the pods would be
relocated in refurbished redundant buildings elsewhere on the hospital site.

The individual bedrooms would all be located on the southern face of the wing. They will

Page 33



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

occupy  the space previously taken by the original bedrooms and will extend onto the
balcony within the new structure. Each bedroom will have en-suite washing and toilet
facilities, which to simplify the layout and the disposition of services will be back to back with
adjacent bathrooms.

The proposal has formed the subject of a pre-application enquiry and the design of the
scheme has developed in close consultation with the Council's Conservation/ Urban Design
Officer.

This proposal is a replacement scheme for the 18 bed 'Holly' ward scheme which was
approved on 18/9/15 (9011/APP/2014/3602 refers). The hospital advise that the previous
scheme is prohibitively expensive, particularly as this only offered a temporary fix to the need
for more bed space at the hospital and have therefore put forward this alternative permanent
solution.

The application is supported by the submission of the following documents:-

Design and Access Statement:

This describes the use of the buildings and the proposed development, including its
appearance and access provision.

Heritage Statement:

This provides an introduction to the assessment, including a description of the site and the
development proposals. Relevant legislation and the policy context is considered and the
report's methodology described. The likely impacts of the proposals upon the heritage
assets of the site and their setting are assessed. The report concludes that only the locally
listed hospital main building has the potential to be affected, and then only on the second
floor and that through responsive design, in consultation with the LPA Conservation Officer,
the proposed development has been designed to ensure that key heritage impacts have
been given full consideration in developing a scheme that also meets the requirements to
upgrade facilities.

Energy Assessment:

This provides an introduction to the study, describes the site and the development
proposals. Relevant building regulations are assessed and the existing building is modeled
to define the baseline CO2 emissions. The proposed building with individual building inputs
were assessed and the report concludes that the scheme would result in a thermal
improvement on the existing structure, which would be compliant with the relevant building
regulations if the appropriate building inputs, including the use of blinds were used.

Planning Stage Drainage Design Statement:

This describes the proposed drainage works and concludes that the proposed works would
not increase the amount of impermeable drained area and therefore would not increase the
amount of surface water run-off and the increase in foul drainage would not be significant as
compared to existing levels.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There have been numerous planning applications submitted on the hospital site over the
years. Of particular relevance to this application is the following:-

Permission was granted on 18/9/15 for the temporary retention of Acorn Ward and Oak
Ward; temporary extension above Acorn Ward to provide a new 18 bed ward with
associated access (to be known as Holly ward), linking it to the existing main block via a new
bridge; and single storey extension to provide additional ITU accommodation, CT and MRI
scanners and associated patient, user and staff accommodation (App. No.
9011/APP/2014/3602 refers).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.E7

PT1.HE1

PT1.BE1

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM2

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

PT1.EM8

PT1.T1

PT1.CI1

(2012) Raising Skills

(2012) Heritage

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Accessible Local Destinations

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

NPPF1

NPPF7

NPPF8

NPPF9

NPPF10

NPPF12

LPP 3.1

LPP 3.2

LPP 3.17

LPP 5.2

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF - Promoting healthy communities

NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

(2015) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2015) Improving health and addressing health inequalities

(2015) Health and social care facilities

(2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

Part 2 Policies:

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 35



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.7

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.15

LPP 6.3

LPP 6.9

LPP 6.10

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.13

LPP 7.14

LPP 7.16

OL1

OL2

OL4

BE4

BE8

BE13

BE15

BE20

BE21

BE24

OE1

OE8

R16

R17

AM2

AM7

AM9

AM13

(2015) Sustainable design and construction

(2015) Renewable energy

(2015) Flood risk management

(2015) Sustainable drainage

(2015) Water use and supplies

(2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

(2015) Cycling

(2015) Walking

(2015) Parking

(2015) An inclusive environment

(2015) Designing out crime

(2015) Local character

(2015) Architecture

(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2015) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2015) Improving air quality

(2015) Green Belt

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people with

Page 36



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM14

AM15

PR20

LDF-AH

SPD-PO

disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Harefield Hospital

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008

Not applicable22nd June 2016

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

CONSERVATION / URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

Harefield Hospital lies within the Harefield Village Conservation Area, the building subject of this
application is the largest of the Locally Listed complex of 1930s local authority sanatorium buildings.
These are in a striking, stream-line "modernist" style and purposely located on a hill top to take
advantage of the clear air. The building proposed for extension comprises two curved wings linked by
a central tower. The rear elevations of the wings originally included floor to ceiling metal framed
glazed facades opening out onto deep verandas and balconies. These were an important element in
the treatment for TB at the time, when patients with breathing difficulties were exposed to the fresh air
for long periods of time. The front was and still is a simply detailed curved  brick facade, with a central
entrance with steps to a generous foyer. This space still retains many "Art Deco" decorative features
including light fittings.

External Consultees

24 neighbouring properties have been consulted, the application has been advertised in the local
press as affecting the character or appearance of Harefield Village Conservation Area on 1/6/16 and a
site notice was displayed on 26/5/16 with a closing date of 20/6/16. 1 response has been received,
raising the following points, summarised below:-

(i) There should be no more expansion at the hospital until it resolves the car parking. Staff cars are
clogging up roads on the side streets in the area with no consideration to the residents and even park
in Sanctuary Close even though there is a sign saying parking is for residents only.

Harefield Tenants and Residents' Association: No response.

Harefield Village Conservation Area Panel: No response.

Harefield History Society: No response.

Page 37



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Today the rear elevation of the building is much altered, with all floors except the area subject of this
application having lost their glazing and balconies. The area subject of this application retains the
original balcony and balustrade, canopy and roof form, including a central raised rotunda that marks
the staircase lobby. The original windows, however, have been removed and the openings partially
bricked in. Externally the original open setting of the building has been lost and the space has been
infilled with many ad-hoc structures of varied height and design. As a result of this it is no longer
possible to really appreciate the full extent of what originally must have been a very impressive
structure. The interior at second floor level retains its original layout and a number of features, such
as timber doors with port hole windows, contemporary door furniture, original stairs and balustrades.

The proposals, which include a full and well detailed heritage statement, are for the retention of the
structure of the top floor and the creation of a new glazed facade, positioned forward of that existing
but still set behind the original restored balustrade. The roof level will be raised to incorporate modern
services and there will be new AHUs at roof level, positioned on the "pods" off the main building.
Whilst it is regretted that the original and only remaining balcony will be lost to view, the new glazed
facade strives to retain something of the spirit of the original glazed facades of the hospital and the
design could eventually be replicated on the other wing, replacing the poorly designed cladding that
currently exists on the upper floor. Both wings would then be symmetrical in appearance as originally
intended. As part of the recent revisions, the existing concrete structure of the upper floor will be
retained within the new structure so that the original form of the roof and canopy would not be lost. 

The changes to the facade are such that it is not considered that the proposed works would have any
adverse impact on the overall significance of the non designated asset (the Locally Listed Building) or
the character and appearance of the wider setting of the conservation area (a designated asset).

No objections, subject to conditions requiring the recording of the building and details of the repair
works, roof level services and materials be submitted.

HIGHWAYS ENGINEER:

The application involves the creation of one new 16 bed ward plus a nearby 4 bed ward to replace
existing offices which are to be relocated to another building on the site. There is no specific
Transport Statement or even a Technical Note relating to traffic flow or car parking at this busy
hospital site.

In a previous application (9011/APP/20114/3602) a parking survey was carried out in 2015. This
parking survey found that there was spare parking capacity on the site although there were over 900
staff and 149 beds on the site. The application for temporary ward accommodation was subsequently
approved.

Although there are bus services operating to the site, the PTAL value for the hospital is 1b (poor) so
car parking on the site is an issue.

From comments made in the Design and Access Statement it would appear that the current office
area was previously used as a hospital ward and is now reverting back to that previous use.

The site has a number of car parking areas that are spread round the hospital complex and it is often
not clear to visitors whether there are vacant parking spaces available.

I have been in talks with WSP over the discharge of conditions that related to car parking issues on
the site and potential solutions were covered by a S106 agreement relating to the previous planning
application on the site (9011/APP/2014/3602).

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The hospital site forms part of the designated Metropolitan Green Belt. National policy in
relation to development within the Green Belt is contained within the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) which advises that the prime aim of Green Belt policy is to
prevent urban sprawl, by keeping such land permanently open. This is to be achieved by
resisting inappropriate development, which by definition is harmful to the Green Belt. London
Plan policies and Hillingdon's Green Belt policies, specifically Policies OL1 and OL4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) echo this national
policy objective. However, Policy OL1 does identify Harefield Hospital as being a major
developed site within the Green Belt where limited infilling or redevelopment may be
acceptable.

Policy PR20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
is the site specific policy which relates to Harefield Hospital and states that infilling and
redevelopment for health purposes associated with Harefield Hospital will be acceptable in
principle where appropriate, subject to:

(i) green belt considerations, 
(ii) compatibility with the Harefield Village conservation area;
(iii) a comprehensive approach and appropriate phasing including provision of associated
access, servicing, car parking and landscaping in accordance with the Council's current
policies and standards;
(iv) land bank provision to allow for possible future changes in the need for health services;
and
(v) where land at North Wards site is surplus to current and future Harefield Hospital
requirements, a Mediparc associated with and having close operational linkages with
Harefield Hospital is acceptable in principle.

This proposal would not result in any additional building footprint being created and would
not materially alter the existing bulk and mass of this wing of the main hospital building so as
to impact upon the openness of the Green Belt. Furthermore, the impact of the proposals on
the Harefield Village Conservation Area and upon the need for possible phasing, access, car
parking and landscaping have been assessed in the relevant sections below in the officer's
report, and the extensions are to meet the hospital's requirements for additional facilities and
capacity enhancement, so that the scheme is considered to fully comply with Policy PR20 of

There are issues on the hospital site with providing access to the parking areas on the site and the
previous condition relates to providing solutions to this issue.

This whole on-site parking issue has not been helped by the hospital charging for car parking spaces

I would suggest that as the 20 additional beds add to a significant increase in the number of patients
and presumably visitors I would suggest that the same conditions be applied as in the previous
application for a temporary ward.

Other than the above comments on a condition relating to on-site car parking I have no significant
objections to the application.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

No objections to this scheme.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 29012).

Not applicable to this development.

Harefield Hospital lies within the Harefield North Archaeological Priority Area and the Colne
Valley Archaeological Priority Zone, the south eastern corner of the hospital grounds,
including the main built-up envelope of the hospital buildings form part of the Harefield
Village Conservation Area and the hospital grounds contain a number of statutory and locally
listed buildings, including the locally listed main hospital building.

The proposal for an infill extension on the second floor will not affect any archaeological
interest that there may or may not be on site. Also, the works are sufficiently distant and
screening by existing buildings from the statutorily listed buildings on site which are sited
further to the west so that it is only the impact upon the Harefield Village Conservation Area
and the locally listed building that are of relevance.

The design of the infill extension has been developed to maintain an 'open' aspect to the
enclosing of the balcony through the use of expansive glazing. The glazing system used will
also reflect that of the original facade. The tower feature will be maintained, and where
internal features cannot be restored and retained they will be replaced with features
reflecting the original design.

The Council's Conservation / Urban Design Officer advises that the rear elevation of the
building is much altered, with all floors except the area the subject of this application having
lost their glazing and balconies. The area the subject of this application retains the original
balcony and balustrade, canopy and roof form, including a central raised rotunda that marks
the staircase lobby, although the original windows have been removed and the openings
partially bricked in. Externally, the officer notes that the original open setting of the building
has been lost and the space has been infilled with many ad-hoc buildings and structures of
varied height and design so that it is no longer possible to really appreciate the full extent
the original structure. The interior at second floor level retains its original layout and a
number of features, such as timber doors with port hole windows, contemporary door
furniture, original stairs and balustrades.

The officer advises that whilst it is regretted that the original and only remaining balcony will
be lost to view, the new glazed facade does retain something of the spirit of the original
glazed facades of the hospital and the design could eventually be replicated on the other
wing, replacing the poorly designed cladding that currently exists on the upper floor. Both
wings would then be symmetrical in appearance as originally intended. As part of the recent
revisions, the existing concrete rotunda structure of the upper floor will be retained within the
new structure so that the original form of the roof and canopy would not be lost. 

As a result of this assessment, it is considered that the proposed changes to the facade
would not have any adverse impact on the overall significance of the Locally Listed Building
and would preserve the character and appearance of the wider setting of the Conservation
Area. The Council's Conservation/ Urban Design Officer raises no objections to the scheme
subject to conditions to require the recording of the building and the detailed elements of the
design and materials which form part of the officer's recommendation. As such, the scheme
complies with Policies BE4 and BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

Page 40



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Not applicable to this development.

The site specific policy for this site (Policy PR20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan) advises that
infilling and redevelopment proposals for health purposes associated with Harefield Hospital
will be acceptable in principle where appropriate, subject to amongst other criteria, green
belt considerations. 

The infill extension to the second floor balcony area on the east wing of the main hospital
building would not increase the built-up appearance of the building. Also the minimal
increase in height of parts of the building and the new air handling units would be sited away
from the roof edges where they would not be readily visible from ground level.

As such, it is considered as the proposals would not materially increase the bulk and mass
of the building so that the openness of the Green Belt would not be prejudiced, in
accordance with Policies OL4 and PR20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to protect the amenities of surrounding residential properties from
new development in relation to loss of sunlight, dominance and loss of privacy respectively.

The nearest residential properties to the proposed infill extension are the houses on the
opposite side of Rickmansworth Road where the nearest residential elevation would be sited
some 57m away from the nearest part of the infill extension and would only have an oblique
view of the new structure which would be viewed against the backdrop of the existing
building. These properties would be separated by the road and belt of woodland planting
within the hospital grounds. Although the boundary planting has been thinned recently,
additional trees are to be planted along this boundary and a new native hedge has been
planted.

As such, the proposals would not result in any loss of sunlight or privacy, nor appear unduly
dominant to surrounding residential occupiers in accordance with policy.

Noise issues are dealt with in Section 7.18 below.

Not applicable to this development.

Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) advise respectively that proposals for development will be assessed
against their contribution to traffic generation and impact on congestion, having regard to the
present and potential capacity of public transport and that the traffic generated by proposed
developments would need to be accommodated on principal roads without increasing
demand along roads or at junctions already used to capacity, not prejudice the free flow of
traffic, nor diminish environmental benefits brought about by other road improvement
schemes or infiltrate local roads. Policy AM9 supports cycle provision, including the need for
cycle storage provision within development schemes and Policy AM14 advises that

Page 41



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

development should accord with adopted car parking standards.

There are no specific car parking standards for hospitals, with development proposals being
assessed on an individual basis. The site has a number of car parking areas that are spread
round the hospital complex and it is often not clear to visitors whether there are vacant
parking spaces available.

On the previous application (9011/APP/2014/3602 refers) which this application would in
part supersede in relation to the additional ward provision (with a total of 20 additional
bedspaces currently being proposed as compared to 18 on the previous application), a car
parking utilisation survey was carried out at the hospital in 2015 which indicated that
although the hospital site is served by bus routes, the majority of staff and visitors use cars
as a main mode of travel which is to be expected in an area that has very poor public
transport accessibility (PTAL 1b). Furthermore, this parking survey found that with over 900
staff and 149 beds on site, there was still spare parking capacity on the site although based
on the survey results, car parking space utilisation was forecast to increase from 83% to
90% following the proposed development.

The Highway Engineer on the previous application advised that at such a high car park
utilisation level, users of the hospital will experience significant difficulty in locating any
unoccupied car parking spaces given that they are spread around the site. Also, the
engineer advised that site visits have confirmed that there is extensive use of over spill car
parking on grass verges within the site and double parking within some staff car parks and
noted that the surveys do not appear to have identified the full extent of such demand / use
on site.

In order to address these concerns, committee previously agreed Heads of Terms for a
S106 Agreement which would secure a Travel Plan, including a £20,000 bond to encourage
the reduction of the use of the private car and implementation of a co-ordinated scheme for
the management of on-site and on-street car parking in the area.

The Highway Engineer on this scheme advises that these Heads of Terms are equally
applicable to this scheme. In addition, an additional clause is required to ensure that the
previously approved ward can not be implemented in addition to the new ward currently
proposed.

URBAN DESIGN

This issue is addressed in Section 7.07 of the report. 

ACCESS

This issue is addressed in Section 7.12 of the report. 

SECURITY

A condition to require that the development satisfies 'Secure by Design' criteria is not
required for this hospital development as it would be constantly staffed.

The submitted Design and Access Statement advises that as a hospital trust, the applicant 

Page 42



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

duty bound to ensure that all public and patient areas meet with strict mobility guidelines
which takes into account takes into account, for instance, that buildings have been designed
and specified to ensure ease of access, provision of WC facilities for all, appropriate signage
and interior colour schemes that respect light reflectance values.

Not applicable to this development.

This application has no implications for tree protection, landscaping or ecology.

The plans include segregated waste storage facilities for the ward. The management and
collection of waste would be a matter for the hospital.

An energy assessment has been submitted to support the application which makes various
recommendations in terms of the thermal efficiencies which could be employed within the
proposed works.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has reviewed the document and raises no objections to
the proposals. A condition has been added to ensure that the works are carried out in
accordance with the submitted Energy assessment.

The submitted Planning Stage Drainage Design Statement advises that the proposed works
would not increase the amount of impermeable drained area of the building and therefore
would not increase the amount of surface water run-off and the increase in foul drainage
would not be significant as compared to existing levels. On this basis, no objections can be
raised to the proposals on drainage grounds and there is no need for drainages conditions.

Noise

The development proposals are not likely to give rise to a significant increase in noise over
and above that generated by the existing hospital. The siting of the new ward on the second
floor of the main hospital building does not bring hospital activities any closer to surrounding
residential occupiers, the nearest of which are located on the opposite side of
Rickmansworth and Hill End Roads and are separated from the hospital by the roads
themselves and a belt of woodland planting. A condition to control the noise from plant is
included in the officer's recommendation.

Air Quality

The hospital is not situated within an air quality management area, no additional parking is
proposed and the small increase in vehicle numbers that could be potentially generated by
the increased intensity of use of the existing parking spaces by the additional bed spaces
would not give rise to any material air quality concerns.

The comments raised by the individual objector have been dealt with in the officer's report.

Policy R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that: 'The Local Planning
Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open space,
facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community, social

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other development
proposals'.

A S106 Agreement would be needed to secure the following:-

1. The partial non-implementation of planning permission dated 18/9/15, App. No.
9011/APP/2014/3602 refers for the temporary extension above Acorn Ward to provide a new
18 bed ward with associated access (to be known as Holly ward) and its link to the main
hospital block via a new bridge,
2. A Green Travel Plan for the Hospital Trust, to include a £20,000 bond, and
3. a. Prior to the start of construction, the submission of the scope of a study for developing
a coordinated scheme for the management of on-site and on-street car parking in the area,
to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
3. b. Prior to occupation, funding and implementation of the coordinated on-site car park
management plan and a scheme for management of on-street car parking in the area, as
agreed with the Council.

The proposal is not Mayoral or Council CIL liable.

No enforcement issues are raised by the site or this application.

No other planning issues are raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

This scheme represents an alternative permanent proposal to provide a new ward with 20
additional bed spaces as compared to the approved scheme (9011/APP/2015/3206 refers)
which accommodated the ward within a new modular building with 18 additional bed spaces
which only provided a temporary solution to the demand for more bed space at the hospital

The scheme would provide the additional ward on the top floor of the eastern wing of the
main hospital building by re-locating the existing administrative offices to redundant
buildings, with additional internal floor area created by extending onto the balcony. The
scheme, which would use a glazed curtain wall set back from the retained and restored
balustrade would provide a more appropriate design that would respect the original open
character of the balconies than the simple bricking-up that has occurred on all the other
balconies.

There would be no green belt objections to such a scheme and as the need for a Travel
Plan and a co-ordinated scheme for the management of on-site and on-street car parking in
the area was previously dealt with by a S106 Agreement, the same Heads of Terms would
be required in a Deed of Variation/new S106 Agreement to assist with the alleviation of the
on-street parking that occurs around the hospital. A further Heads of Term is required to
ensure that the ward building, previously approved is not implemented in addition to this
proposal.

The application is recommended for approval.

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
London Plan (March 2016)
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012)
HDAS: 'Accessible Hillingdon'
Consultation responses

Richard Phillips 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 46



4

G
a
rt

h

18

10

24

2

22

C
h
e
rr

y

16

NEW
 PARK ROAD

20

1

Kaden

The Rancher

A
s
h
le

y

LB

14

CHAPEL ROW

1

88.1m

G
ri

ff
in

W
o
lf
e
le

e

Church

LB

P
a
rk

s
id

e

88.4m

R
IC

K
M

A
N

S
W

O
R

T
H

 R
O

A
D

2

S
a
ty

a
n
a
n
d
a

Police
Office

Tk

El Sub Sta

CranfieldCott

Highbury ´

July 2016

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Harefield Hospital

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

9011/APP/2016/1862

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DOUAY MARTYRS SCHOOL, CARDINAL HUME CAMPUS 86 LONG LANE
ICKENHAM

Replacement of existing school boundary fence with new 1.8m high metal
fencing and gates and creation of new tarmacadam pathway to the main
reception.

24/03/2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 6683/APP/2016/1226

Drawing Nos: 5508/2002 Rev.P/1 (Boundary Improvement Project
Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan, prepared by DHP

Date Plans Received: 22/06/2016Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the provision of replacement boundary
fencing, a pedestrian footpath and new planting at Douay Martyrs School's Cardinal Humes
Campus in Ickenham.

The applicant has advised that the replacement fencing is required to increase school
security. Following negotiation with the applicant and to overcome officer concerns
regarding visual impact amended plans were received which showed a reduction in the
height of the originally proposed fencing from 2.4m to 1.8m and which also included the
provision of hedge planting to assist in softening the visual impact of the fence.

It is considered that the boundary treatment now proposed strikes an acceptable balance
between the need for increased security and the need to protect the visual amenities of the
school site and surrounding Icckenham Village Conservation Area. The development is
therefore considered to be visually acceptable in this location.

The proposal complies with current local, London Plan and national planning policies and,
accordingly, approval is recommended.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, number 5508/2002 Rev.P/1, and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION

24/03/2016Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM5

COM10

General compliance with supporting documentation

Tree to be retained

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2015).

The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the following
specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan, prepared by DHP

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policy BE38 of
theHillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork
shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply
with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs' 
Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work - Recommendations'
and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard
Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

3

4

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Page 50



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53

I1

I2

I15

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building to Approved Drawing

Encroachment

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

2

3

4

5

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (2015) and national guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you should
ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit

BE4
BE10
BE13
BE19

BE38

OE1

AM7
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.8

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
(2015) Local character
(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

Page 51



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I24

I32

I47

Works affecting the Public Highway - General

Trees in a Conservation Area

Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

6

7

8

9

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises The Douay Martyrs School Cardinal Humes Campus, which
is located on the west side of Long Lane in Ickenham.

The site accommodates a number of single-storey buildings, including the early 20th
Century single-storey red brick main building, which is characterised by its steeply pitched

(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on
any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway.  This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted.  For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

As the application site is within a conservation area, not less than 6 weeks notice must be
given to the Local Planning Authority of any intention to cut down, top, lop or uproot or
otherwise damage or destroy any trees on the application site. Please contact the Trees &
Landscape Officer, Residents Services, 3N/02, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW for
further advice.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

The Metropolitan Police Designing Out Crime Officer has provided the following
recommendations:

1. An encrypted access control system for the vehicle and pedestrian gates, working with
the school's operational requirements, should be provided. Maglocks or a similar electronic
keep system, controlled from the reception area, viewable by a CCTV / Intercom system
which allows identification of persons visiting inside school hours is recommended.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 52



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

tiled roof. It also accommodates playgrounds, car parking and associated facilities.

The school falls within a predominantly residential area and is immediately bounded by
residential properties to the north, west and south. It has a long frontage to Long Lane to the
east, which is currently characterised by approximately 1.2m high close boarded fence.
Residential properties are located opposite.

The application site falls within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area as designated in the
Hillingdon Local Plan. The main school building is locally listed. Long Lane is designated as
a Local Distributor Road.

None relevant.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (2015)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of 1.8m high black Barbican
Imperial fencing and gates along the school's front boundary and 1.8m high black Euroguard
weldmesh fencing along a part of the school's north and south boundaries.

Planting would be provided alongside the fenceline fronting Long Lane in order to soften its
visual appearance.

A new pedestrian footpath would be provided within the site to provide direct access from
the street to the front entrance.

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE4

BE10

BE13

BE19

BE38

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 53



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OE1

AM7

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.8

and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

(2015) Local character

(2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

Not applicable18th May 2016

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

The proposed fencing would still be considered visually intrusive on the street scene and detract from
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. However, it is considered that an acceptable
compromise could be met. 

Although the revised proposal incorporates a reduction in the height of the fencing, retention of the
existing close boarded fencing along the side boundaries and addition of soft landscaping (hedging)
directly along the site's front boundaries, the following amendments relating to the fencing finish are
required for the scheme to be considered acceptable. 

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 26 local owner/occupiers and the Ickenham Residents' Association.
Site and press notices were also posted. Two letters of objection have been received which raise the
following concerns:

i) The fencing will be out of keeping with the local area and make the site look like a prison.
ii) Green fencing would be more appropriate
iii) Additional pollution and danger caused by traffic waiting to access/egress the site on the bend in
the road right opposite residential properties.

A local Ward Councillor has requested that this application is determined by the planning committee.

METROPOLITAN POLICE

An encrypted access control system for the vehicle and pedestrian gates, working with the school's
operational requirements, should be provided. Maglocks or a similar electronic keep system,
controlled from the reception area, viewable by CCTV / Intercom system which allows identification of
persons visiting inside school hours is recommended.

With regard to the fence, a suitably tested fence installed to security standard LPS 1175:SR1, should
be provided. A robust welded mesh fence is most suitable, this is so as to ensure the safeguarding of
the children.

Page 54



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

The application seeks the provision of replacement fencing to an existing school site. No
objections are therefore raised to the principle of the development subject to the proposals
meeting site specific criteria. The impact of the development on the visual amenities of the
Ickenham Village Conservation Area will be a particularly important consideration.

Not applicable to this type of development.

The proposed Barbican Imperial 1.8m fencing along the site boundary would need to be amended to
include:
1. Round vertical pales, capped with domed pale caps rather than angled
2. Posts should ideally be solid and capped at the top

These design finishes will ensure the fencing remains in keeping with the residential character of the
surrounding area.

Officer comment: Amended plans have been received which show that these recommendations have
been incorporated into the design.

TREES/LANDSCAPE OFFICER

· There are a number of trees along the site frontage which are protected by virtue of their location
within the Ickenham Village Conservation Area.

· The replacement of 1200mm high close board timber fencing with 2.4metre high steel railings will be
out of character in this Conservation Area where residential front boundaries tend to be lower and / or
softer in appearance.

· It is not known what the perceived risk is at this site but an 1800mm high blunt-topped railing is
above average eye level and would be very difficult to climb.

· In order to enhance the security - and privacy - a lower railing height could be specified, re-inforced
with hedge planting on the inside. This would make the boundary even more difficult to climb and
provide a soft visual screen.

· No trees or other landscape features of merit should be affected by the proposal, provided that care
is taken during the installation process and pre-emptive pruning is carried out to tree limbs which may
conflict with the new fence line.

Recommendations:
The specification should be reviewed - and amended - to ensure that the proposals preserve and
enhance the character and local distinctiveness of the surrounding natural and built environment.

Officer comment: Amended plans have been received which show a reduction in the height of the
fencing to 1.8m and incorporate hedge planting as per these recommendations.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER

All fences around vehicular accesses are see through and there are no visibility/sight line concerns.
No objections are raised on highway grounds.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 55



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The application site falls within Ickenham Village Conservation Area. Furthermore, the main
school building is locally listed. Local Plan policy BE4 seeks to safeguard the visual amenity
of Conservation Areas. Policy BE10 seeks to resist development which would be detrimental
to the setting of a listed building.

As originally proposed, at 2.4m in height, the proposed fencing was considered to be visually
unacceptable in this location. However, following concerns raised by officers amended plans
have been provided which show a reduction in the height of the fencing to 1.8m.
Furthermore, the plans confirm that the fencing along the main frontage will comprise round
vertical pales, capped with domed pale caps and that the posts will be solid and capped at
the top, as per the Conservation and Urban Design Officer's recommendations. Soft
landscaping in the form of laurel hedging would also be provided to further enhance the
visual amenities of the site. Along the north and south boundaries the existing wooden
fencing would be retained alongside the proposed new weldmesh fence to assist in
softening the visual impact here. 

The amended plans fully take on board and address concerns originally raised by the
Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer and the Council's Trees/Landscape
Officer.

It is considered that the proposals achieve an acceptable compromise between increasing
the security of the site whilst being sensitive to the visual amenities of the surrounding area
such that the development is considered to comply with relevant policy objectives.

Not applicable. There is no requirement to consult the aerodrome safeguarding authorities
on this application.

Not applicable. There is no green belt land within the vicinity of the application site.

This matter has been largely addressed in part 7.03 of the report. Whilst the fencing would
be clearly visible from Long Lane it is considered that the proposals would achieve an
acceptable compromise between increasing the security of the site whilst being sensitive to
the visual amenities of the surrounding area such that the development is considered to
comply with relevant planning policies which seek to safeguard visual amenity.

The proposed fencing would form part of the school's north and south boundaries, which are
immediately adjoined by residential properties. Nevertheless, existing vegetation would
provide screening to the fencing and at 1.8m high it is not considered that this would have
an unacceptable impact on residential amenity. Notably, no objections have been received
from the immediate neighbours to the north or south.

Whilst the fencing would be visible to properties located over 25m away opposite, some of
which have raised objections, given this distance and the separation provided by Long Lane,
it is not considered that the development would have such a negative impact on their outlook
that it would result in any significant loss of residential amenity.

Overall, the development is considered to comply with the objectives of Local Plan policy
BE18, which seeks to safeguard residential amenity.

Page 56



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this type of development.

There would be no additional traffic to/from the site as a result of the development.
Furthermore, no alterations are proposed to the existing car parking arrangements.

A new pedestrian access would be created from Long Lane and alterations would be made
to the existing vehicular accesses to increase security through the installation of an access
control system. It is not considered that this would have any detrimental impact on the
highway and, notably, the Council's Highway Engineer has raised no objections.
Accordingly, the development is considered to comply with Local Plan policy AM7, which
seeks to safeguard highway and pedestrian safety.

Issues relating to urban design have been addressed in part 7.03 of this report.

With regard to security, the applicant has advised that the new fencing is required to
enhance security to the school site in accordance with Secure by Design criteria. The
Metropolitan Police have advised that no objections are raised to the current proposals.
They have however verbally advised that fencing lower than 1.8m could not be supported.
Informatives would be added to pass on advice from the police regarding the proposed
access control system.

Whilst their recommendation for weldmesh fencing to be provided is noted, it is not
considered that this would be in keeping with the character or appearance of the
Conservation Area if it were to be provided along the Long Lane frontage. The proposed
railing type fencing is considered to be a visually acceptable compromise.

Not applicable. The development proposals would have no impact on disabled access
to/from the site.

Not applicable to this type of development.

No trees of landscape features of merit would be affected by the proposals.

Further to requests from officers, amended plans have been received which show that laurel
hedging would be provided along the fenceline to assist in softening its visual impact. 

Whilst residents' requests for green fencing are noted, the Council's Trees/Landscape
Officer has advised that the black proposed will better blend with foliage as it grows,
assisting in reducing its overall visual impact. Accordingly, the provision of black fencing is
considered to be acceptable in this instance.

The amended plans are considered to address the Trees/Landscape Officer's initial
comments such that the development is now considered to comply with policies BE4, BE10,
BE13 and BE38 of the Local Plan, which all seek to safeguard visual amenity.

Not applicable to this type of development.

Page 57



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not applicable to this type of development.

Not applicable. The development does not fall within a flood zone and the fencing would not
result in any increased flood risk.

Not applicable to this type of development.

The concerns raised by residents have been addressed in the body of the report.

Not applicable to this type of development.

None.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of

Page 58



North Planning Committee - 14th July 2016

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

Following the receipt of amended plans, it is considered that the fencing proposed strikes an
acceptable balance between meeting the schools security needs whilst providing a visually
acceptable form of development. The proposal would not result in any adverse impacts to
pedestrian or highway safety and raises no other issues of concern. The development is
considered to comply with relevant local Plan, London Plan and national planning policies
and, accordingly, approval is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (2015)
National Planning Policy Framework
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon

Johanna Hart 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 59



2
6

7
5

a

1

74

6
5

7

8
4

a

E
D

IN
B

U
R

G
H

 D
R

IV
E

3b

3d

3
6

a

11

1

5a

36.9m
2

3a

3

2

7
8

SL

GILBEY CLOSE

15

C
O

U
R
T R

O
A

D

38.7m

7
5

1
7

72
a

8
0

a

8
0

76

4
2

1
8

8
2

21

14

3
2

5

14

3c

72

12

3e

2

1
6

1

LB

131

7
8

C
O

U
R

T
 R

O
A

D

HALFORD ROAD

121

15

87a

18

127

96

37.2m

1a

Cardinal Hume Campus

31

7
7

7
7

a

1

L
O

N
G

 L
A

N
E

2a

SL

8
5

119

1

B
R

ID
G

E
 W

AY

MP

8
4

1b

98

94

2

7
9

SL96a

87

4
0

1
9

8
9

38.1m

19

105

14

18

5
9

The Douay Martyrs School

88

25

4
8

1
0

0

2

10

15

8
9

a

la

2b

10

SWAKELEYS DRIVE

TU
RNSTO

NE CLO
SE

37.2m

LB

129

5.25

1

91

17

36.6m7a
36.6m

14

Dormy

House

North Hillingdon Centre

El S
ub S

ta

The Douay Martyrs

Catholic School
(secondary)

30 31

33

29

26 2728

32

ESS

Shelter

ESS

ESS

´

July 2016

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Douay Martyrs School

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:2,500

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

6683/APP/2016/1226

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 60



Agenda Item 8

Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Agenda Annex

Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 52 Bushey Road, Ickenham - 71297/APP/2016/529
	6 Harefield Hospital, Hill End Road, Harefield - 9011/APP/2016/1862
	7 Douay Martyrs School, Cardinal Hume Campus, 86 Long Lane, Ickenham - 6683/APP/2016/1226
	8 S106 Quarterly monitoring report
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

